SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE TO

Tender Offer Statement Under Section 14(d)(1) or 13(e)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act Of 1934

NexPoint Capital, Inc.

(Name of Subject Company (Issuer))

NexPoint Capital, Inc. (Name of Filing Person (Issuer))

Common stock, par value \$0.001 (Title of Class of Securities)

65341M 102 (CUSIP Number of Securities)

Dustin Norris NexPoint Capital, Inc. 300 Crescent Court, Suite 700 Dallas, Texas 75201 Telephone: (844) 485-9167

(Name, Address and Telephone Number of Person Authorized to Receive Notices and Communications on Behalf of the Person(s) Filing Statement)

With a Copy to:

Jon-Luc Dupuy K&L Gates, LLP 1 Lincoln Street Boston, MA 2111 Telephone: (617) 261-3146

Calculation of Filing Fee

	Transaction Valuation	Amount of Filing Fee	
	\$1,550,216.837 (a)	\$201.22 (b)	
(a)	Calculated as the aggregate book value of 263.642.319 shares in the offer, based on the Net Asset Value Per Share price of \$5.88 as of July 31.		

- (a) Calculated as the aggregate book value of 263,642.319 shares in the offer, based on the Net Asset Value Per Share price of \$5.88 as of July 31, 2020.
- (b) Calculated at \$129.80 per \$1,000,000 of the Transaction Valuation.

Check the box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing with which the offsetting fee was previously paid. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.

Amount Previously Paid: Not Applicable Filing Party: Not Applicable Form or Registration No.: Not Applicable Date Filed: Not Applicable

☐ Check the box if the filing relates solely to preliminary communications made before the commencement of a tender offer.

Check the appropriate boxes below to designate any transactions to which the statement relates:

	third party tender offer subject to Rule 14d-1.		
\boxtimes	issuer tender offer subject to Rule 13e-4.		
	going-private transaction subject to Rule 13e-3.		
	amendment to Schedule 13D under Rule 13d-2.		
Check the following box if the filing is a final amendment reporting the results of the tender offer. \Box			

ITEMS 1 THROUGH 9 AND ITEM 11.

This Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO is filed by NexPoint Capital, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"). This Schedule TO relates to the Company's offer to purchase for cash up to 2.5% of its outstanding shares of common stock, \$0.001 par value (the "Stock"), upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Purchase dated August 21, 2020 (the "Offer to Purchase") and in the Company's related Letter of Transmittal (the "Letter of Transmittal" which, together with the Offer to Purchase, as each may be amended and supplemented from time to time, the "Offer"), copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibits (a)(1)(ii) and (a)(1)(i), respectively. The price to be paid for the Stock in cash will be an amount per Share of (i) not less than the net asset value per Share (the "NAV Per Share") of the Company's common stock (as determined in good faith by the board of directors of the Company or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion) next calculated following the Expiration Date (as defined in the Offer) (date of repurchase) and (ii) not more than 2.5% greater than the NAV Per Share as of such date, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through September 21, 2020, or such later date to which the Offer is extended, less any applicable withholding taxes and without interest, and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer, if properly tendered and not withdrawn prior to the Expiration Date. The information set forth in the Offer is incorporated herein by reference with respect to Items 1 through 9 and Item 11 of this Schedule TO.

ITEM 10.

Not applicable.

ITEM 12. EXHIBITS.

Exhibit No.	Document
(a)(1)(i)	Form of Letter of Transmittal.
(a)(1)(ii)	Offer to Purchase dated August 21, 2020.
(a)(1)(iii)	Form of Letter to Clients for use by Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and Other Nominees.
(a)(1)(iv)	Form of Notice of Withdrawal.
(a)(1)(v)	Form of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.
(a)(5)(i)	Press Release issued on August 21, 2020.

ITEM 13.

Not applicable.

SIGNATURE

After due inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth in this statement is true, complete and correct.

NexPoint Capital, Inc.

By: /s/ Frank Waterhouse

Name: Frank Waterhouse

Title: Treasurer, Principal Accounting Officer and Principal Financial Officer

Dated as of: August 21, 2020

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No.	<u>Document</u>
(a)(1)(i)	Form of Letter of Transmittal.
(a)(1)(ii)	Offer to Purchase dated August 21, 2020.
(a)(1)(iii)	Form of Letter to Clients for use by Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and Other Nominees.
(a)(1)(iv)	Form of Notice of Withdrawal.
(a)(1)(v)	Form of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.
(a)(5)(i)	Press Release issued on August 21, 2020.

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

To Tender Shares

of

NexPoint Capital, Inc.

Pursuant to the Offer to Purchase Dated August 21, 2020

THE OFFER AND WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS EXPIRE AT 4:00 P.M., NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON SEPTEMBER 21, 2020, UNLESS THE OFFER IS EXTENDED.

The Tender Agent for the Offer is: DST SYSTEMS, INC.

Delivery by First Class Mail, By Registered, Certified or Express Mail, By Overnight Courier, or By Hand should be directed to:

NexPoint Advisors, L.P. c/o DST Systems, Inc. 430 West 7th Street Kansas City, MO 64105

Any questions regarding the Offer can be directed to the Company's Tender Agent, DST Systems, Inc., at 1-844-485-9167

DELIVERY OF THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A VALID DELIVERY.

THE INSTRUCTIONS ACCOMPANYING THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL SHOULD BE READ CAREFULLY BEFORE THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL IS COMPLETED.

This Letter of Transmittal relates to the offer by NexPoint Capital, Inc. (the "Company"), a Delaware corporation registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, as a closed-end management investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, to purchase for cash up to 2.5% of its outstanding common stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Shares") upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Purchase dated August 21, 2020 (the "Offer to Purchase"), receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in this Letter of Transmittal, which, together with the Offer to Purchase, each as amended or supplemented from time to time, together constitute the "Offer."



	DESCRIPTION OF SHARES TENDERED		
Name(s) and Address(es) of Registered Holder(s) (Please fill in, if blank)	Shares Tendered* (attach Additional Signed List if Necessary)		
	1 □ All		
	2		
* Unless otherwise indicated, it will be assumed that all (and not partial) Shares are being tendered. See Instruction 3.			

For purposes of this Offer, the Company is not requiring that you tender at least 25% of your existing Share holdings if you wish to participate in the Offer. If you choose to tender only a portion of your Shares, you must maintain a minimum balance of \$2,500 worth of shares of common stock following the tender of shares for repurchase. If you wish to tender all or any portion of your Shares of the Company, you should either:

- tender your Shares pursuant to the procedures set forth in Section 3 of the Offer to Purchase; or
- request a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee to effect the transaction for you. If your Shares are registered in the name of a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee, you should contact such person if you desire to tender your Shares.

Questions and requests for assistance or for additional copies of this Letter of Transmittal, the Offer to Purchase or the Notice of Withdrawal may be directed to DST Systems, Inc. ("Tender Agent"), whereby the Tender Agent will fulfill the role of information agent and depositary, at its address or telephone number set forth on the first page of this Letter of Transmittal.



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING TENDERED SHARES PLEASE READ ACCOMPANYING INSTRUCTIONS CAREFULLY.

Name of Tendering Institut	ion		
Account Number			
Transaction Code Number			



Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned hereby tenders to NexPoint Capital, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), the above-described common stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Shares"), pursuant to the Company's offer to purchase up to 2.5% of its outstanding Shares, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Company's Offer to Purchase dated August 21, 2020 (the "Offer to Purchase"), receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and this Letter of Transmittal (the "Letter of Transmittal") which, together with the Offer to Purchase, each as amended or supplemented from time to time, constitutes the "Offer." The purchase price of each Share will be (i) not less than the net asset value per Share (the "NAV Per Share") of the Company's common stock (as determined in good faith by the board of directors of the Company (the "Board") or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion) next calculated following the Expiration Date (as defined in the Offer to Purchase) (the date of repurchase) and (ii) not more than 2.5% greater than the NAV Per Share as of such date, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through the Expiration Date, less any applicable withholding taxes and without interest, and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer, if properly tendered and not withdrawn prior to the Expiration Date. The Offer by the Company is not conditioned on any minimum number of Shares being validly tendered and not withdrawn prior to the expiration of the Offer but is subject to other conditions as outlined in the Offer to Purchase and in the related Letter of Transmittal.

Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer and effective upon acceptance for payment of and payment for the Shares tendered herewith, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers to, or upon the order of, the Company all right, title and interest in and to all the Shares that are being tendered hereby and appoints the Tender Agent as the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned with respect to such Shares, with full knowledge that the Tender Agent also acts as the agent of the Company, with full power of substitution (such power of attorney being deemed to be an irrevocable power coupled with an interest), to:

- (i) transfer ownership of such Shares to or upon the order of the Company; and
- (ii) receive all benefits and otherwise exercise all rights of beneficial ownership of such Shares, subject to the next paragraph, all in accordance with the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer.

The undersigned hereby covenants, represents and warrants to the Company that:

- the undersigned has full power and authority to tender, sell, assign and transfer the Shares tendered hereby and that when and to the extent the same are accepted for payment by the Company, the Company will acquire good, marketable and unencumbered title thereto, free and clear of all security interests, liens, restrictions, charges, encumbrances, conditional sales agreements or other obligations relating to the sale or transfer of the Shares and not subject to any adverse claims;
- (ii) the undersigned understands that tenders of Shares pursuant to any of the procedures described in Section 3 of the Offer to Purchase and in the instructions to this Letter of Transmittal will constitute the undersigned's acceptance of the terms and conditions of the Offer;
- (iii) the undersigned will, upon request, execute and deliver any additional documents deemed by the Tender Agent or the Company to be necessary or desirable to complete the sale, assignment and transfer of the Shares tendered hereby; and
- (iv) the undersigned has read, understands and agrees to all the terms of the Offer.

All authority herein conferred or agreed to be conferred by this Letter of Transmittal shall survive the death or incapacity of the undersigned, and any obligation of the undersigned hereunder shall be binding upon the heirs, personal representatives, executors, administrators, successors, assigns, trustees in bankruptcy and legal representatives of the undersigned. Except as stated in the Offer to Purchase, this tender is irrevocable.

The purchase price of each Share will be (i) not less than the NAV Per Share of the Company's common stock (as determined in good faith by the Board or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion) next calculated following the Expiration Date and (ii) not more than 2.5% greater than the NAV Per Share as of such date, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through the Expiration Date, less any applicable withholding taxes and without interest. All Shares validly tendered on or before the Expiration Date of the Offer and not



properly withdrawn will be purchased, subject to the terms and conditions of the Offer. If any tendered Shares are not accepted for payment pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Offer for any reason, such Shares will be returned without expense to the holder of Shares ("Shareholder") in accordance with Section 5 of the Offer to Purchase.

The undersigned understands that tenders of Shares pursuant to the procedures described in Section 3 of the Offer to Purchase and in the instructions hereto will constitute a binding agreement between the undersigned and the Company upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer. The undersigned acknowledges that under no circumstances will the Company pay interest on the purchase price, including, without limitation, by reason of any delay in making payment.

The undersigned recognizes that, under the circumstances set forth in the Offer to Purchase, the Company may terminate or amend the Offer; may postpone the acceptance for payment of, or the payment for, Shares tendered; or may accept for payment fewer than all of the Shares tendered.

Checks for the Closing Amount will be issued and mailed and any Certificate(s) not tendered or not accepted for payment will be issued or returned in the name(s) of the registered holder(s) appearing under "Description of Shares Tendered."



SIGN HERE

(Signature(s) of Owners)	
Dated:	
Name(s):	
(Please Print)	
Capacity (full title and location signed):	
Address:	
(Include Zip Code)	
Area Code and Telephone Number:	
(Must be signed by registered holder(s) exactly as name(s) appear(s) on a security position listing or by person(s) authorized to be (s) by certificate(s) and documents transmitted herewith. If signature is by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in a corporation or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, please set forth full title and location of signing and	n-fact, agent, officer of
Guarantee Of Signature(s)	
(See Instructions 1 and 4)	
Authorized Signature:	
Name:	
Title:	
(Please Type or Print)	
Name of Firm:	
Address:	
(Include Zip Code)	
Area Code and Telephone No.:	
Dated:	



Offer by

NEXPOINT CAPITAL, INC.

(the "Company")

To Purchase Up to 2.5% of Its Outstanding Common Stock

THE COMPANY'S OFFER AND WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS WILL EXPIRE AT 4:00 P.M., NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON SEPTEMBER 21, 2020, UNLESS THE OFFER IS EXTENDED.

The Company's Offer (as defined herein) is not conditioned on any minimum number of shares being tendered but is subject to certain other conditions as outlined in this Offer and in the related letter of transmittal.

If the Company's Offer is completed, the Company will purchase common stock ("Shares") in cash at an amount per Share of (i) not less than the net asset value per Share (the "NAV Per Share") of the Company's common stock (as determined in good faith by the board of directors (the "Board") of the Company or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion) next calculated following the Expiration Date (as defined herein) (the date of repurchase) and (ii) not more than 2.5% greater than the NAV Per Share as of such date, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through September 21, 2020, or such later date to which the Offer is extended, less any applicable withholding taxes and without interest, and subject to the conditions set forth in this Offer to Purchase, dated August 21, 2020 (the "Offer to Purchase") and in the related Letter of Transmittal (the "Letter of Transmittal" which, together with the Offer to Purchase, as each may be amended from time to time, constitutes the Company's "Offer"), if properly tendered and not withdrawn prior to the Expiration Date (as defined herein).

Neither the Company, nor the Company's Board of Directors (the "Directors" or the "Board") nor NexPoint Advisors, L.P., the investment adviser for the Company (the "Investment Adviser" or "NexPoint Advisors"), makes any recommendation as to whether to tender or not to tender Shares in the Offer. No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations in connection with the Offer other than those contained in this Offer and in the Letter of Transmittal, and, if given or made, such information or representations may not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Board or the officers of the Company or the Investment Adviser. The Company has been advised that no Director or executive officer of the Company intends to tender any Shares pursuant to the Offer. You may direct questions and requests for assistance to DST Systems, Inc. ("DST"), the tender agent for the Offer (the "Tender Agent"), at its address and telephone number set forth on the back cover of this Offer. Shareholders may obtain additional copies of this Offer, the Letter of Transmittal, the notice of guaranteed delivery, the notice of withdrawal or any other tender materials from the Tender Agent and may also contact their brokers, dealers, banks, trust companies or other nominee ("Nominee Holder") for copies of these documents. If you do not wish to tender your Shares, you need not take any action.



IMPORTANT PROCEDURES

For purposes of this Offer, the Company is not requiring that you tender at least 25% of your existing Share holdings if you wish to participate in the Offer. If you choose to tender only a portion of your Shares, you must maintain a minimum balance of \$2,500 worth of shares of common stock following the tender of shares for repurchase.

If you want to tender all or a portion of your Shares of the Company, you must do one of the following before the Company's Offer expires:

- If your Shares are registered in the name of a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee, contact the Nominee Holder and have the Nominee Holder tender your Shares for you; or
- Send a completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal bearing original signature(s) for all Shares to be tendered, and any other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal, to the Tender Agent pursuant to the procedures set forth in Section 3 of this Offer to Purchase prior to the Expiration Date of the Company's Offer.

To tender your Shares of the Company, you must follow the procedures described in this Offer to Purchase, the Letter of Transmittal and the other documents related to the Offer. The Company may reject any tender not fully in compliance with these procedures.

If the amount of repurchase requests exceeds the number of shares the Company seeks to repurchase, the Company will repurchase shares on a pro-rata basis. As a result, it may repurchase less than the full amount of Shares that you request to have repurchased. If the Company does not repurchase the full amount of your Shares that you have requested to be repurchased, or determines not to make repurchases of Shares, you may not be able to dispose of your Shares.

THIS OFFER TO PURCHASE AND THE COMPANY'S RELATED LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL CONTAIN IMPORTANT INFORMATION, AND YOU SHOULD CAREFULLY READ BOTH IN THEIR ENTIRETY BEFORE YOU MAKE A DECISION WITH RESPECT TO THE OFFER.

August 21, 2020



TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
SUMMARY TERM SHEET	4
INTRODUCTION	8
THE OFFER	10
1. TERMS OF THE OFFER; EXPIRATION DATE	10
2. EXTENSION OF TENDER PERIOD, TERMINATION; AMENDMENT	11
3. PROCEDURES FOR TENDERING SHARES	11
4. WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS	13
5. ACCEPTANCE FOR PAYMENT AND PAYMENT	14
6. CERTAIN MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES	15
7. PRICE RANGE OF SHARES; DIVIDENDS	19
8. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDS; EFFECT OF THE OFFER	19
9. PURPOSE OF THE OFFER	19
10. INFORMATION CONCERNING THE COMPANY	20
11. INTEREST OF THE DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS; TRANSACTIONS AND ARRANGEMENTS	20
12. LEGAL MATTERS; REGULATORY APPROVALS	21
13. CONDITIONS FOR THE OFFER	21
14. FEES AND EXPENSES	22
15. MISCELLANEOUS	22



SUMMARY TERM SHEET

SECURITIES SOUGHT:	Up to 2.5% or 263,642.319 of the Shares of the Company
PRICE OFFERED PER SHARE:	The Company will purchase Shares in cash at an amount per Share of (i) not less than the NAV Per Share of the Company's common stock (as determined in good faith by the Board or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion) next calculated following the Expiration Date (the date of repurchase) and (ii) not more than 2.5% greater than the NAV Per Share as of such date, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through September 21, 2020, or such later date to which the Offer is extended, less any applicable withholding taxes and without interest, and subject to the conditions set forth in this Offer.
SCHEDULED EXPIRATION DATE:	September 21, 2020
PURCHASER:	NexPoint Capital, Inc.
	This is an issuer tender offer.

The following are some of the questions that you, as a Shareholder (as defined herein), may have and answers to those questions. You should carefully read this Offer to Purchase (the "Offer to Purchase") and the Company's related Letter of Transmittal (the "Letter of Transmittal" which, together with the Offer to Purchase, as each may be amended from time to time, constitutes the Company's "Offer") in their entirety because the information in this summary term sheet is not complete and additional important information is contained in the Offer.

WHO IS OFFERING TO BUY MY SHARES?

This is an issuer tender offer. The Company is offering to purchase Shares it previously issued. The Company is a Delaware corporation.

HOW MUCH IS THE COMPANY OFFERING TO PAY AND WHAT IS THE FORM OF PAYMENT?

The Company is offering to purchase up to 2.5% or 263,642.319 of its outstanding Shares, at an amount per Share of (i) not less than the NAV Per Share of the Company's common stock (as determined in good faith by the Board or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion) next calculated following the Expiration Date (the date of repurchase) and (ii) not more than 2.5% greater than the NAV Per Share as of such date, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through September 21, 2020, or such later date to which the Offer is extended, less any applicable withholding taxes and without interest. As of July 31, 2020, the NAV Per Share was \$5.88.

When considering whether to tender Shares, you should be aware that the payment received pursuant to the Offer may be less than the amount a Shareholder would receive if the Company were to complete a liquidity event. A liquidity event could include: (i) a listing of the Company's shares on a national securities exchange; (ii) a merger or another transaction approved by the Board in which Shareholders would receive cash or shares of a listed company; or (iii) a sale of all or substantially all of the



Company's assets either on a complete portfolio basis or individually followed by a liquidation. While the Company intends to seek to complete a liquidity event within five years following the completion of its offering stage, there can be no assurance that a suitable transaction will be available or that market conditions for a liquidity event will be favorable during that timeframe. As such, there can be no assurance that the Company will complete a liquidity event on acceptable terms or at all.

WILL I HAVE TO PAY ANY FEES OR COMMISSIONS?

If you tender your Shares in the Offer, you will not have to pay brokerage fees, commissions or similar expenses. If you own Shares through a broker or other Nominee Holder, and your broker or other Nominee Holder tenders your Shares on your behalf, your broker or other Nominee Holder may charge you a fee for doing so. You should consult your broker or other Nominee Holder to determine whether any charges will apply.

WHEN WILL THE TENDER OFFER EXPIRE AND MAY THE OFFER BE EXTENDED?

The Company's Offer will expire at 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on September 21, 2020, unless extended. The offer period may be extended by the Company issuing a press release or making some other public announcement no later than 9:00 a.m. New York City time on the next business day after the Offer otherwise would have expired.

If you hold your Shares directly, you have until the expiration of the Offer to tender your Shares in the Offer. If your Shares are registered in the name of your broker or other Nominee Holder, you may need to tender your Shares in an Offer before 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on September 21, 2020, in order to allow such Nominee Holder time to tender your Shares. You should consult your broker or other Nominee Holder to determine if there is an earlier deadline by which you must inform such Nominee Holder of any decision to tender your Shares and provide to such Nominee Holder any other required materials.

IS THERE A LIMIT ON THE NUMBER OF SHARES I MAY TENDER?

The Company is offering to purchase up to 2.5% or 263,642.319 of its outstanding Shares. For purposes of this Offer, the Company is not requiring that you tender at least 25% of your existing Share holdings if you wish to participate in the Offer. If you choose to tender only a portion of your Shares, you must maintain a minimum balance of \$2,500 worth of Shares of common stock following a tender of Shares for repurchase.

If the amount of repurchase requests exceeds the number of Shares the Company seeks to repurchase, Shares will be repurchased on a pro-rata basis. As a result, the Company may repurchase less than the full amount of Shares that you request to have repurchased. If the Company does not repurchase the full amount of your Shares that you have requested to be repurchased, or determines not to make repurchases of Shares, you may not be able to dispose of your Shares.

DOES THE COMPANY HAVE THE FINANCIAL RESOURCES TO MAKE PAYMENT?

Yes. If the Company purchased 263,642.319 Shares at the NAV Per Share price of \$5.88, as of July 31, 2020, the Company's total cost, not including fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Offer, would be approximately \$1,550,216.837. The Company will use the proceeds received from the sale of shares of its common stock under the Company's distribution reinvestment plan to pay for Shares tendered. At the sole discretion of the Board, the Company may also use cash on hand, cash available from borrowings and cash from liquidation of investments as of the end of the applicable period to repurchase shares. There are no financing conditions to the Offer. See Section 8 of this Offer to Purchase.



HOW DO I TENDER MY SHARES IN THE OFFER?

To tender Shares in the Offer, a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal bearing original signature(s) for all Shares to be tendered, and any other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal, must be physically received by the Tender Agent not later than the Expiration Date (as defined below). If your Shares are held in street name by your broker or other Nominee Holder, such Nominee Holder can tender your Shares through the Tender Agent. See Section 3 of this Offer to Purchase, which describes procedures for tendering your Shares.

WHEN AND HOW WILL I BE PAID FOR MY TENDERED SHARES?

If accepted for payment, the Company will pay for all validly tendered and not withdrawn Shares promptly after 4:00 p.m. New York City time on September 21, 2020, or such later date to which the Offer is extended (the "Expiration Date"). The Company will pay for your validly tendered and not withdrawn Shares in United States dollars by depositing the purchase price with the Depositary, which will act as your agent for the purpose of receiving payments from us and transmitting such payments to you. In all cases, payment for tendered Shares will be made only after timely receipt by the Depositary of the Letter of Transmittal and any other required documents as described in Section 3 of this Offer to Purchase.

HOW DO I WITHDRAW TENDERED SHARES IN AN OFFER?

You can withdraw tendered Shares at any time until the Expiration Date and, if the Company has not agreed to accept your Shares for payment, such tenders may be withdrawn any time prior to 40 business days following the Expiration Date. See Section 4 of this Offer to Purchase.

To withdraw tendered Shares, you must deliver a written notice of withdrawal (a form of which has been provided to you), with the required information to the Depositary, while you have the right to withdraw the tendered Shares. If your Shares are registered in the name of your broker or other Nominee Holder, contact that Nominee Holder to withdraw your tendered Shares. You may need to allow such Nominee Holder additional time to withdraw your tendered Shares. You should consult your broker or other Nominee Holder to determine if there is an earlier deadline by which you must inform such Nominee Holder of any decision to withdraw your tendered Shares.

Withdrawals of tenders of Shares may not be rescinded, and any Shares validly withdrawn will thereafter be deemed not validly tendered for purposes of an Offer. However, withdrawn Shares may be retendered by following the procedures described in Section 3 of this Offer to Purchase at any time prior to the Expiration Date. See Section 4 of this Offer to Purchase.

WHAT ARE THE TAX CONSEQUENCES OF TENDERING SHARES?

Generally, the receipt of cash in connection with tendering Shares pursuant to the Offer will be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes and may also be a taxable transaction under applicable state, local, foreign and other tax laws. For U.S. federal income tax purposes, the sale of your Shares for cash generally will be treated either as (1) a sale or exchange of the Shares, or (2) a distribution with respect to the Shares that is potentially taxable as a dividend. See Section 6 of this Offer to Purchase.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THE OFFER?

Because the Company is a closed-end investment company that is not listed on a national securities exchange, Shareholders have a very limited, if any, ability to sell Shares at face value. Other than in the event of the liquidation of the Company, the Company has no legal obligation to redeem Shares at their face value. The Company has chosen to conduct the Offer to provide a liquidity opportunity to Shareholders.



Following NexPoint Advisors' recommendation regarding the Offer, the Board considered the information provided to the Board and NexPoint Advisors' analysis and approved the Offer on June 18-19, 2020.

Please bear in mind that neither the Company, nor the Board, nor the Investment Adviser has made any recommendations as to whether you should tender your Shares. Shareholders are urged to consult their own investment and tax advisors and make their own decisions whether to tender any Shares and, if so, how many Shares to tender.

ARE THERE ANY CONDITIONS TO THE OFFER?

The Offer is subject to certain conditions as described in Section 13 of this Offer to Purchase.

IF I DECIDE NOT TO TENDER MY SHARES IN THE OFFER, HOW WILL THE OFFER AFFECT MY SHARES?

If you decide not to tender your Shares, you will still own the same number of Shares, and the terms of the Shares will remain the same. The Shares are not listed on any securities exchange and there is no well-established secondary market for the Shares. While the Company intends to conduct quarterly tender offers, it is not required to do so and may suspend or terminate the share repurchase program at any time. If you do not tender your Shares, the Company cannot assure you that you will be able to sell your Shares in the future; you may be forced to hold the Shares indefinitely or you may have to sell your Shares at a significant discount to their current NAV Per Share price of \$5.88 per share. See Section 8 of this Offer to Purchase.

The Company intends to seek to complete a liquidity event for its stockholders within five years following the completion of the offering stage. However, the offering period may extend for an indefinite period. Additionally, there can be no assurance that a suitable transaction will be available or that market conditions for a liquidity event will be favorable during that timeframe. As such, there can be no assurance that the Company will complete a liquidity event on acceptable terms or at all.

HOW WILL I BE NOTIFIED IF THE OFFER IS EXTENDED?

If the Company decides to extend its Offer, the Company will inform the Tender Agent of that fact and will make an announcement of the extension not later than 9:00 a.m. on the next business day after the day on which the Offer was scheduled to expire. See Section 2 of this Offer to Purchase.

WHO CAN I TALK TO IF I HAVE QUESTIONS ABOUT THE OFFER?

If you own Shares through a broker or other Nominee Holder, you can call your broker or other Nominee Holder. You can also contact DST Systems, Inc., the Tender Agent, at 1-844-485-9167, Monday through Friday, 9 a.m. to 6 p.m., New York City time.



INTRODUCTION

NexPoint Capital, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company") registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), as a closed-end management investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "1940 Act"), hereby offers to purchase up to 2.5% of the Company's outstanding common stock, \$0.001 par value (the "Shares") as follows, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Offer to Purchase and in the Company's related Letter of Transmittal (which together, constitutes the Company's "Offer").

The price to be paid for the Shares in cash will be an amount per Share of (i) not less than the NAV Per Share of the Company's common stock (as determined in good faith by the Board or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion) next calculated following the Expiration Date (the date of repurchase) and (ii) not more than 2.5% greater than the NAV Per Share as of such date, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through the Expiration Date, less any applicable withholding taxes and without interest (the "Per Share Amount"). The Offer is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Offer to Purchase and in the related Letter of Transmittal.

The Company's Offer is open to all holders of Shares of the Company ("Shareholders") and is not conditioned upon there being a minimum number of Shares validly tendered and not withdrawn prior to the expiration of the Company's Offer, but is subject to other conditions as outlined in this Offer to Purchase. See Section 13 "Conditions to the Offer" of this Offer to Purchase.

Neither the Company, its Board nor the Investment Adviser makes any recommendation as to whether you should tender or not tender Shares in the Offer. No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations in connection with the Offer other than those contained in this Offer to Purchase and in the related Letter of Transmittal, and if given or made, such information or representations should not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Company, its Board or the Investment Adviser. We have been advised that no Director or executive officer of the Company intends to tender any Shares pursuant to the Offer.

You will not be obligated to pay brokerage fees or commissions in order to tender your Shares. However, if you own Shares through a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee ("Nominee Holder"), and your broker or other Nominee Holder tenders your Shares on your behalf, your broker or other Nominee Holder may charge you a fee for doing so. You should consult your broker or other Nominee Holder to determine whether any charges will apply. The Company will pay all charges and expenses of DST Systems, Inc., the tender agent (the "Tender Agent"), whereby the Tender Agent will fulfill the role of information agent and depositary (in such capacity, the "Depositary"), incurred in connection with the Company's Offer. See Section 14 "Fees and Expenses." The receipt of cash for Shares purchased by the Company pursuant to the Offer generally will be a taxable transaction for federal income tax purposes, and you will be responsible for any tax liabilities you incur as a result of participating in the Offer. In addition, if you fail to complete, sign and return to the Tender Agent a Form W-9 (or a substitute form) (or in the case of certain non-U.S. Shareholders, an appropriate IRS Form W-8 or substitute form), you may be subject to backup withholding on the gross proceeds payable to you pursuant to the Offer. Additionally, certain non-U.S. Shareholders may be subject to U.S. federal income tax withholding on gross proceeds payable to them pursuant to the Offer. See Section 6 "Certain Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences."



THIS OFFER TO PURCHASE AND THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL CONTAIN IMPORTANT INFORMATION AND YOU SHOULD READ THEM CAREFULLY AND IN THEIR ENTIRETY BEFORE YOU MAKE ANY DECISION WITH RESPECT TO THE OFFER.

If you do not wish to tender your Shares, you need not take any action.



THE OFFER

1. TERMS OF THE OFFER: EXPIRATION DATE

Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Offer, the Company will accept for payment and pay for up to 2.5% of its outstanding Shares, validly tendered prior to 4:00 p.m. New York City time, on September 21, 2020, or such later date to which the Offer is extended (the "Expiration Date"), and not withdrawn as permitted by Section 4 of this Offer to Purchase. The Company reserves the right to extend the Offer to a later Expiration Date. The offer period may be extended by the Company issuing a press release or making some other public announcement no later than 9:00 a.m. New York City time on the next business day after the Offer otherwise would have expired.

If the Company makes a material change in the terms of the Offer or the information concerning the Offer (not including the price at which Shares may be tendered), or if it waives a material condition of the Offer, the Company will send revised materials reflecting such changes and will extend the offer period by a minimum of an additional five business days. If the price at which Shares may be tendered is changed, the Company will extend the offer period by a minimum of an additional ten business days. In all cases, the Company will extend the Offer to the extent required under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). During any such extension, all Shares previously tendered and not withdrawn will remain subject to the Offer, subject to the right of any such tendering shareholder to withdraw his, her or its shares.

The price to be paid for the Shares is an amount per share, net to the seller in cash, will be an amount per Share of (i) not less than the NAV Per Share of the Company's common stock (as determined in good faith by the Board or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion) next calculated following the Expiration Date (the date of repurchase) and (ii) not more than 2.5% greater than the NAV Per Share as of such date, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through the Expiration Date, less any applicable withholding taxes and without interest. See Section 7 of this Offer to Purchase. Under no circumstances will interest be paid on the offer price for tendered Shares, regardless of any extension of or amendment to the Offer or any delay in paying for such Shares.

When considering whether to tender Shares, you should be aware that the payment received pursuant to the Offer may be less than the amount a Shareholder would receive if the Company were to complete a liquidity event. A liquidity event could include: (i) a listing of the Company's shares on a national securities exchange; (ii) a merger or another transaction approved by the Board in which Shareholders would receive cash or shares of a listed company; or (iii) a sale of all or substantially all of the Company's assets either on a complete portfolio basis or individually followed by a liquidation. While the Company intends to seek to complete a liquidity event within five years following the completion of its offering stage, there can be no assurance that a suitable transaction will be available or that market conditions for a liquidity event will be favorable during that timeframe. As such, there can be no assurance that the Company will complete a liquidity event on acceptable terms or at all.

The Company's Offer is being made to all of the Company's Shareholders. The Offer is subject to certain conditions as described in Section 13.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Offer, the Company will pay the consideration offered or return the tendered securities promptly after the termination or withdrawal of the Offer. The amount of any stock or share transfer taxes imposed in respect of Shares tendered in connection with the Offer, including, without limitation, such taxes imposed for a reason other than the sale or transfer of Shares to the Company pursuant to the Offer, whether such taxes are imposed on the registered holder(s), any other person to whom shares are to be returned or the purchase price is to be paid, or otherwise, including any



such taxes due in respect of (a) shares tendered but not purchased, including such shares that are to be returned in the name of a person other than the registered holder(s), or (b) shares the purchase price for which is paid to a person other than the registered holder(s), will be for the Shareholder's account and will not be borne by the Company. Shareholders should consult their own tax advisors concerning the tax consequences of participating in the Offer in light of their particular situations.

As of August 11, 2020, there were 10,545,692.772 Shares outstanding. As of the date of the Offer, the Directors and officers of the Company did not beneficially own any Shares, except that James Dondero (President and Principal Executive Officer) owned, through one or more entities, 2,549,002.292 Shares.

2. EXTENSION OF TENDER PERIOD, TERMINATION; AMENDMENT

The Company expressly reserves the right, in its sole discretion, at any time and from time to time, to extend the period of time during which the Offer is pending by making a public announcement thereof. During any such extension, all Shares previously tendered and not purchased or withdrawn will remain subject to the Offer. The Company also reserves the right, at any time and from time to time up to and including the Expiration Date, to amend the Offer in any respect by making a public announcement thereof. Such public announcement will be issued no later than 9:00 a.m. New York City time on the next business day after the previously scheduled Expiration Date. Without limiting the manner in which the Company may choose to make a public announcement of extension, termination or amendment, except as provided by applicable law, the Company shall have no obligation to publish, advertise or otherwise communicate any such public announcement.

If the Company makes a material change in the terms of the Offer or the information concerning the Offer (not including the price at which Shares may be tendered), or if it waives a material condition of the Offer, the Company will send revised materials reflecting such changes and will extend the offer period by a minimum of an additional five business days. If the price at which Shares may be tendered is changed, the Company will extend the offer period by a minimum of an additional ten business days. In all cases, the Company will extend the Offer to the extent required by rules promulgated under the Exchange Act. These rules require that the minimum period during which a tender offer must remain open following material changes in the terms of the offer or information concerning the offer (other than a change in price or a change in percentage of securities sought) will depend on the facts and circumstances, including the relative materiality of such terms or information. If (i) the Company increases or decreases the price to be paid for Shares, or the Company decreases the number of Shares being sought and (ii) the Offer is scheduled to expire at any time earlier than the expiration of a period ending on the tenth business day from, and including, the date that notice of such increase or decrease is first published, sent or given, its Offer will be extended at least until the expiration of such period of ten business days.

3. PROCEDURES FOR TENDERING SHARES

For Shares to be properly tendered pursuant to the Offer, a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal bearing original signature(s) for all Shares to be tendered and any other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal must be physically received by the Tender Agent at the address set forth on the back cover of this Offer before 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on the Expiration Date. These materials may be sent via mail, courier or personal delivery. If your Shares are held by a broker or other nominee, approval is required from the Nominee Holder. The Letter of Transmittal must be signed by such Nominee Holder.



THE METHOD OF DELIVERY OF THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL AND ANY OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS IS AT THE OPTION AND SOLE RISK OF THE TENDERING SHAREHOLDER. IF DOCUMENTS ARE SENT BY MAIL, REGISTERED MAIL WITH RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED, PROPERLY INSURED, IS RECOMMENDED.

Shareholders have the responsibility to cause their Shares to be tendered, the Letter of Transmittal properly completed and bearing original signature(s) and the original of any required signature guarantee(s), and any other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal, to be timely delivered. Timely delivery is a condition precedent to acceptance of Shares for purchase pursuant to the Offer and to payment of the purchase amount.

Shareholders whose Shares are registered in the name of a broker or other Nominee Holder should contact such Nominee Holder if they desire to tender their Shares. Such Shareholders may need to inform their brokers or other Nominee Holders of any decision to tender Shares, and deliver any required materials, before 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on the Expiration Date. You should consult your broker or other Nominee Holder to determine when you would need to inform such Nominee Holder of any decision to tender Shares and to deliver any required materials to them in order to tender your Shares.

U.S. Federal Tax Withholding. Under U.S. federal income tax law, the gross proceeds otherwise payable to an individual or certain non-corporate Shareholders pursuant to the Offer may be subject to backup withholding unless the Shareholder provides the information described in Section 6 of this Offer to Purchase. In addition, under certain circumstances, a withholding rate of 30% (or a lower applicable treaty rate) may be applied to the gross payments payable to a Non-U.S. Shareholder, as described in Section 6 of this Offer to Purchase.

Determination of Validity; Rejection of Shares; Waiver of Defects; No Obligation to Give Notice of Defects. The Company will determine, in its sole discretion, all questions as to the number of Shares to be accepted, and the validity, form, eligibility, including time of receipt, and acceptance for payment of any tender of Shares. The Company's determination will be final and binding on all parties. The Company reserves the absolute right to reject any or all tenders it determines not to be in proper form or the acceptance of or payment for which it determines may be unlawful. The Company also reserves the absolute right to waive any of the conditions of its Offer and any defect or irregularity in the tender of any particular Shares or any particular Shareholder. No tender of Shares will be deemed to be properly made until all defects or irregularities have been cured by the tendering Shareholder or waived by the Company. Neither the Company, the Tender Agent, or any other person will be under any duty to give notice of any defects or irregularities in any tender, or incur any liability for failure to give any such notice. The Company's interpretation of the terms of and conditions to its Offer, including the Letter of Transmittal and the instructions thereto, will be final and binding. By tendering Shares to the Company, you agree to accept all decisions the Company makes concerning these matters and waive any right you might otherwise have to challenge those decisions.

Your Representation and Warranty; Our Acceptance Constitutes an Agreement. A tender of Shares of the Company under the procedures described above will constitute your acceptance of the terms and conditions of the Company's Offer, as well as your representation and warranty to the Company that you have the full power and authority to tender, sell, assign and transfer the Shares tendered, as specified in the Letter of Transmittal or otherwise.

The Company's acceptance for payment of Shares tendered under the Offer will constitute a binding agreement between you and the Company with respect to such Shares, upon the terms and conditions of the Offer described in this and related documents.



By tendering Shares as described above, subject to, and effective upon, acceptance for payment of the Shares tendered in accordance with the terms and subject to the conditions of the Company's Offer, in consideration of the acceptance for payment of such Shares in accordance with the terms of the Offer, the tendering Shareholder shall be deemed to sell, assign and transfer to, or upon the order of, the Company all right, title and interest in and to all the Shares that are being tendered and that are being accepted for purchase pursuant to the Offer (and any and all dividends, distributions, other shares or other securities or rights declared or issuable in respect of such Shares after the Expiration Date) and irrevocably constitute and appoint the Depositary the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned with respect to such Shares (and any such dividends, distributions, other shares or securities or rights), with full power of substitution (such power of attorney being deemed to be an irrevocable power coupled with an interest) to (a) transfer ownership of such Shares (and any such other dividends, distributions, other shares or securities or rights), together with all accompanying evidences of transfer and authenticity to or upon the order of the Company, upon receipt by the Depositary, as the agent of the tendering Shareholder, of the purchase price; (b) present such Shares (and any such other dividends, distributions, other shares or securities or rights) for transfer on the books of the Company; and (c) receive all benefits and otherwise exercise all rights of beneficial ownership of such Shares (and any such other dividends, distributions, other shares or securities or rights) will, without further action, be revoked and no subsequent powers of attorney may be given by the tendering Shareholder (and, if given, will not be effective).

By tendering Shares as described above, and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Company's Offer, the tendering Shareholder also shall be deemed to represent and warrant that: (a) the tendering Shareholder has full power and authority to tender, sell, assign and transfer the tendered Shares (and any such other dividends, distributions, other shares or securities or rights declared or issuable in respect of such Shares after the Expiration Date); (b) when and to the extent the Company accepts the Shares for purchase, the Company will acquire good, marketable and unencumbered title thereto, free and clear of all liens, restrictions, charges, proxies, encumbrances or other obligations relating to their sale or transfer, and not subject to any adverse claim; (c) on request, the tendering Shareholder will execute and deliver any additional documents deemed by the Depositary or the Company to be necessary or desirable to complete the sale, assignment and transfer of the tendered Shares (and any such other dividends, distributions, other shares or securities or rights declared or issuable in respect of such Shares after the Expiration Date); and (d) the tendering Shareholder has read the Offer Documents and agreed to all of the terms of the Company's Offer.

4. WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS

Shares tendered pursuant to the Offer may be withdrawn pursuant to the procedures set forth below at any time prior to the Expiration Date, and unless already accepted for payment pursuant to the Offer, such tenders may be withdrawn any time prior to 40 business days following the Expiration Date. If your Shares are registered in the name of your broker or other Nominee Holder, you may need to allow such Nominee Holder additional time to withdraw your tendered Shares. You should consult your broker or other Nominee Holder to determine if there is an earlier deadline by which you must inform such Nominee Holder of any decision to withdraw your tendered Shares. After the Expiration Date, Shares may not be withdrawn except as otherwise provided in this section.

For a withdrawal to be effective, a written notice of withdrawal must be timely received by the Depositary at its address set forth on the back cover of the Offer and must specify the name of the person having tendered the Shares to be withdrawn, the number of Shares to be withdrawn and the name of the



registered holder of the Shares to be withdrawn, if different from the name of the person who tendered the Shares. Withdrawals may not be rescinded, and any Shares validly withdrawn will thereafter be deemed not validly tendered for purposes of the Offer. However, withdrawn Shares may be retendered by again following one of the procedures described in Section 3 of this Offer to Purchase at any time prior to the Expiration Date.

All questions as to the form and validity (including time of receipt) of any notice of withdrawal will be determined by the Company in its sole discretion, which determination will be final and binding. Neither of the Company, the Tender Agent, or any other person will be under any duty to give notification of any defects or irregularities in any notice of withdrawal or incur any liability for failure to give any such notification.

The method of delivery of any documents related to a withdrawal is at the risk of the withdrawing Shareholder. Any documents related to a withdrawal will be deemed delivered only when actually received by the Depositary. If delivery is by mail, registered mail with return receipt requested, properly insured, is recommended. In all cases, sufficient time should be allowed to ensure timely delivery.

5. ACCEPTANCE FOR PAYMENT AND PAYMENT

Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer, the Company will accept for payment, and will pay cash for, Shares validly tendered on or before the Expiration Date, and not properly withdrawn in accordance with Section 4 of this Offer to Purchase, promptly after the Expiration Date of the Offer. The Company expressly reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to delay the acceptance for payment of, or payment for, Shares, in order to comply, in whole or in part with any applicable law.

For purposes of the Offer, the Company will be deemed to have accepted for payment Shares validly tendered and not withdrawn as, if and when it gives or causes to be given oral or written notice to the Depositary of its acceptance for payment of such Shares pursuant to the Offer. Payment for Shares accepted pursuant to the Company's Offer will be made by deposit of the aggregate purchase price therefore with the Depositary, which will act as agent for the tendering Shareholders for purpose of receiving payments from the Company and transmitting such payments to the tendering Shareholders. In all cases, payment for Shares accepted for payment pursuant to the Offer will be made only after timely receipt by the Depositary of a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal. For a description of the procedure for tendering Shares pursuant to the Offer, see Section 3 of this Offer to Purchase. Under no circumstances will interest on the purchase price for Shares be paid, regardless of any delay in making such payment. Although the Company does not currently intend to do so, if the Company increases the consideration to be paid for Shares pursuant to its Offer, the Company will pay such increased consideration for all Shares purchased pursuant to its Offer.

If any tendered Shares are not accepted for payment pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Offer for any reason, or are not accepted because of an invalid tender, such unpurchased or untendered Shares will be returned via credit to an account maintained at the Depositary, without expense to you, or to other persons at your discretion, as promptly as practicable following the expiration or termination of the Offer.

The purchase price of the Shares will be an amount per Share of (i) not less than the NAV Per Share of the Company's common stock (as determined in good faith by the Board or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion) next calculated following the Expiration Date (the date of repurchase) and (ii) not more than 2.5% greater than the NAV Per Share as of such date, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through the Expiration Date, less any applicable withholding taxes and without interest. If you own Shares through a broker or other Nominee Holder, and your broker or other Nominee Holder tenders your Shares on your behalf, your broker or other Nominee Holder may charge you a fee for doing so. You should consult your broker or other Nominee Holder to determine whether any charges will apply.



6. CERTAIN MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

The following summary of certain U.S. federal income tax consequences of the sale of Shares pursuant to the Offer is for general information purposes only. Unless otherwise noted, this discussion deals only with shares held as capital assets and does not deal with special situations or particular types of Shareholders subject to special treatment under U.S. federal income tax laws (including financial institutions or dealers in securities or commodities, regulated investment companies, traders in securities that elect to mark their holdings to market, insurance companies, Shareholders subject to the federal alternative minimum tax, or Shareholders whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar). This discussion is not tax advice and does not address all aspects of taxation (including other federal (non-income) taxes, state, local, or foreign taxes, estate taxes, or the Medicare tax on unearned income) that may be relevant to particular Shareholders in light of their own investment or tax circumstances.

The discussion below is based upon the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and regulations, rulings and judicial decisions thereunder as of the date hereof, and such authorities may be repealed, revoked or modified, possibly on a retroactive basis, so as to result in U.S. federal income tax consequences different from those discussed below.

Shareholders should consult their own tax advisors concerning the U.S. federal income tax consequences of participating in the Offer in light of their particular situations as well as any consequences arising under the laws of any other taxing jurisdiction.

As used herein, a "U.S. Shareholder" means a Shareholder that is (i) a citizen or resident of the U.S., (ii) a corporation (or any other entity treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes), partnership or other entity created or organized in or under the laws of the U.S., any State or any political subdivision thereof, (iii) an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of the source of the income, or (iv) a trust if it (x) is subject to the supervision of a court within the U.S. and one or more U.S. persons has the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust or (y) has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person. A "Non-U.S. Shareholder" is a Shareholder that is not a U.S. Shareholder.

A sale of Shares of the Company for cash in the Offer generally will be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Depending on a Shareholder's particular circumstances, the sale of Shares pursuant to the Offer generally will be treated either (i) as a "sale or exchange" producing gain or loss or (ii) as the receipt of a distribution from the Company that is potentially taxable to the Shareholder as a dividend. For the avoidance of doubt, any taxes imposed on or in respect of a Shareholder in connection with its sale of Shares pursuant to the Company's Offer, including any applicable share transfer taxes, as discussed in Section 1 above, and any applicable withholding taxes, as discussed below, will be for the Shareholder's account and will not be borne by the Company.

Under Section 302(b) of the Code, a sale of Shares of the Company pursuant to the Offer generally will be treated as a sale or exchange of those Shares if the receipt of cash by the Shareholder: (a) results in a complete termination of the Shareholder's interest in the Company, (b) results in a "substantially disproportionate" redemption with respect to the Shareholder, or (c) is "not essentially equivalent to a dividend" with respect to the Shareholder. Generally, for this purpose a "substantially disproportionate" redemption is one that reduces the Shareholder's percentage voting interest in the Company by more than 20% and after which the Shareholder owns a less-than-50% voting interest in the Company. Also,



generally, for this purpose, a redemption is "not essentially equivalent to a dividend" if it results in a "meaningful reduction" of a Shareholder's percentage interest in the Company. Whether a reduction is "meaningful" depends on a Shareholder's particular facts and circumstances; in general, the smaller a Shareholder's percentage interest in the Company, the more likely that any such reduction therein will be treated as "meaningful."

In determining whether any of these tests has been met, Shares of the Company actually owned, as well as Shares of the Company considered to be owned by the Shareholder by reason of certain constructive ownership rules set forth in Section 318 of the Code, generally must be taken into account. Further, contemporaneous dispositions or acquisitions of the Company's Shares by a Shareholder or a related party may be deemed to be part of a single integrated transaction for purposes of determining whether any of the three tests have been satisfied. Shareholders participating in the Offer should consult with their tax advisers regarding the applicability of one or more of these tests to their particular situations.

If any of these three tests for sale or exchange treatment under Section 302(b) is met, a Shareholder will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between (i) the price paid by the Company for the Shares purchased in the Offer, minus any amounts treated as a dividend, as explained below, and (ii) the Shareholder's adjusted basis in such Shares. If the Shareholder holds such Shares as a capital asset, the gain or loss will be capital gain or loss, which generally will be long-term capital gain or loss if the Shareholder has owned such Shares (or is deemed to have owned such Shares) for more than one year, and otherwise as short-term capital gain or loss. The Company intends to take the position that shareholders tending Shares will qualify for sale or exchange treatment for federal income tax purposes.

Under the "wash sale" rules under the Code, loss recognized on Shares sold pursuant to the Offer will ordinarily be disallowed to the extent the shareholder acquires other shares of the Company or substantially identical stock or securities within 30 days before or after the date the tendered Shares are purchased pursuant to the Offer and, in that event, the basis and holding period of the shares acquired will be adjusted to reflect the disallowed loss. Any loss realized by a tendering shareholder on the sale of a Share held by the shareholder for six months or less will be treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a long-term capital loss to the extent of any distributions or deemed distributions of long-term capital gains received by the shareholder with respect to such Share. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to certain limitations.

To the extent that a Shareholder receives, as part of its gross proceeds on the tender of its Shares of the Company, accumulated and unpaid dividends, the portion of the gross proceeds representing such dividend amounts generally will be treated as either ordinary income dividends, or capital gain dividends in the hands of the Shareholder, as reported by the Company, to the extent such dividends have been previously declared by the Company. The tax treatment of each such type of dividend for Shareholders is explained in the next paragraph.

If, in the case of a Shareholder's sale of Shares pursuant to the Company's Offer, the requirements of Section 302(b) of the Code for sale or exchange treatment are not met, amounts received by a Shareholder in exchange for its Shares pursuant to the Offer will be taxable to the Shareholder as a dividend to the extent of such Shareholder's allocable share of the Company's current and/or accumulated earnings and profits. In this case, a Shareholder will not be permitted to recognize any loss in connection with its sale of its Shares pursuant to the Offer. Any such dividend will constitute either an ordinary income dividend or capital gain dividend. An ordinary income dividend is generally taxable at ordinary income tax rates, and a dividend properly reported as a capital gain dividend is generally taxable at long-term capital gain rates. No portion of any amount a Shareholder receives from the Company in connection with its Offer that is treated as an ordinary income dividend is expected to qualify for the corporate dividends-received



deduction (for corporate Shareholders) or as "qualified dividend income" (for certain non-corporate Shareholders). To the extent that amounts received in connection with the Company's Offer exceed a Shareholder's allocable share of the Company's current and accumulated earnings and profits for a taxable year, those excess amounts will first be treated as a non-taxable return of capital, causing a reduction in the adjusted basis of such Shareholder's Shares, and any amounts in excess of the Shareholder's adjusted basis in its Shares will constitute taxable gain. Any remaining adjusted basis in the Shares tendered to the Company (after reduction by the non-taxable return of capital amount) will be transferred to any remaining Shares of the Company held by such Shareholder following the Company's Offer. In addition, in the case of a corporate Shareholder, if the requirements of Section 302(b) of the Code are not met and the Shareholder is treated as receiving a dividend from the Company, in certain cases the dividend could constitute an "extraordinary dividend" under Section 1059 of the Code, potentially resulting in special basis adjustments for any remaining Shares of the Company held by such Shareholder following the Company's Offer and the recognition of gain. Corporate Shareholders should consult their tax advisers for the possible applicability of this special rule to them.

In addition, the Code generally imposes a 3.8% Medicare contribution tax on the net investment income of certain individuals, estates and trusts to the extent their income exceeds certain threshold amounts. For these purposes, "net investment income" generally includes, among other things, (i) distributions paid by the Company of net investment income and capital gains, and (ii) any net gain from the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of Shares.

In the event that a tendering Shareholder is deemed to receive a dividend as a result of tendering its Shares of the Company, it is possible that Shareholders of the Company whose percentage ownership of the Company increases as a result of the tender will be deemed to receive a constructive distribution from the Company, whether or not such Shareholders tender Shares in connection with the Company's Offer. Such constructive distribution will be treated as a dividend to the extent of a Company's current or accumulated earnings and profits.

The Company's purchase of Shares in the Offer may directly result in, or contribute to a subsequent, limitation on the Company's ability to use capital loss carryforwards to offset future gains. Therefore, in certain circumstances, shareholders who remain shareholders following completion of the Offer may pay taxes sooner, or pay more taxes, than they would have had the Offer not occurred.

Backup Federal Income Tax Withholding. Backup withholding may be imposed on the gross proceeds paid to a tendering U.S. Shareholder unless the U.S. Shareholder provides to the applicable withholding agent, generally on an IRS Form W-9 or substitute form, its taxpayer identification number (employer identification number or social security number), certifies as to no loss of exemption from backup withholding, complies with applicable requirements of the backup withholding rules or is otherwise exempt from backup withholding. In order for a Non-U.S. Shareholder to qualify as an exempt recipient not subject to backup withholding, such Non-U.S. Shareholder must certify as to their non-U.S. status to the applicable withholding agent, generally on an IRS Form W-8 or substitute form. Backup withholding is not an additional federal income tax. Rather, the federal income tax liability of a person subject to backup withholding will be reduced by the amount of tax withheld. If withholding results in an overpayment of taxes, a refund may be obtained provided that the required information is furnished to the Internal Revenue Service. Tendering Shareholders are urged to consult their own tax advisors and the applicable withholding agent, such as their broker or other Nominee Holder, about the requirements relating to backup withholding.



Withholding for Non-U.S. Shareholders. In certain circumstances, a U.S. federal income tax equal to 30% (or a lower applicable treaty rate) may be withheld from the gross payments payable to a Non-U.S. Shareholder or his or her agent. In order to obtain a reduced rate of withholding pursuant to a tax treaty, a Non-U.S. Shareholder generally must deliver to the applicable withholding agent before the payment a properly completed and executed IRS Form W-8BEN, W-8BEN-E or substitute form. In order to obtain an exemption from withholding on the grounds that the gross proceeds paid pursuant to the Offer are effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business within the U.S., a Non-U.S. Shareholder must deliver to the applicable withholding agent a properly completed and executed IRS Form W-8ECI or substitute form. If this withholding tax is applied, but no or fewer income taxes are due (e.g., because the gross proceeds constitute "sale or exchange" proceeds under Section 302(b), as described above) a Non-U.S. Shareholder may be eligible to obtain a refund of all or a portion of any tax withheld. Backup withholding generally will not apply to amounts subject to the 30% or treaty-reduced rate of withholding. Special rules would apply if the Company were a qualified investment entity ("QIE") because it is either a "U.S. real property holding corporation" ("USRPHC") or would be a USRPHC but for the operation of certain exceptions. If an interest in the Company were a USRPI, the Company could be required to withhold U.S. tax on the proceeds paid to a tendering Non-U.S. Shareholder or the Non-U.S. Shareholder could otherwise be required to pay tax on the sale, and the Non-U.S. Shareholder could be required to file a U.S. tax return in connection with the sale. Non-U.S. Shareholders of the Company also may be subject to "wash sale" rules to prevent the avoidance of tax-filing and -payment obligations through the sale and repurchase of Shares.

Non-U.S. Shareholders are urged to consult their own tax advisors and the applicable withholding agent, such as their broker or other Nominee Holder, regarding the application of U.S. federal income tax withholding, including eligibility for a withholding tax reduction or exemption, and the refund procedure.

FATCA Withholding. Sections 1471-1474 of the Code and the U.S. Treasury and IRS guidance issued thereunder (collectively, "FATCA") generally require the Company to obtain information sufficient to identify the status of each of its Shareholders under FATCA or under an applicable intergovernmental agreement (an "IGA") between the United States and a foreign government. If a Shareholder fails to provide the requested information or otherwise fails to comply with FATCA or an IGA, the Company may be required to withhold under FATCA with respect to that Shareholder (i) at a rate of 30% on ordinary dividends it pays, and (ii) on or after January 1, 2019, 30% of certain capital gain dividends it pays, and on the gross proceeds of share redemptions or exchanges. If a payment by the Company is subject to FATCA withholding, the Company is required to withhold without reference to any other withholding exemption.

Other Shareholder Reporting Obligations. Under Treasury regulations directed at tax shelter activity, if a Shareholder recognizes a loss of \$2 million or more for an individual Shareholder or \$10 million or more for a corporate Shareholder, such Shareholder must file with the IRS a disclosure statement on Form 8886. Direct holders of portfolio securities are in many cases excepted from this reporting requirement, but under current guidance, shareholders of a regulated investment company are not excepted. Future guidance may extend the current exception from this reporting requirement to shareholders of most or all regulated investment companies. The fact that a loss is reportable under these regulations does not affect the legal determination of whether the taxpayer's treatment of the loss is proper. Shareholders should consult their own tax advisers concerning any possible disclosure obligation with respect to their investment in Shares.

Shareholders are urged to consult their own tax advisers regarding the application of U.S. federal income tax withholding, including eligibility for a withholding tax reduction or exemption, and the applicable refund procedure, if any.



7. PRICE RANGE OF SHARES: DIVIDENDS

The Shares are not listed and do not trade on any securities exchange. In addition, no well-established secondary market for the Shares exists today and no public trading market for the Shares has been established. Accordingly, no reliable price history is available.

The terms of the Offer provide that Shareholders tendering Shares are entitled to receive all dividends accrued on the Shares on or before the Expiration Date, but not yet paid. Prior to the Expiration Date, dividends will be paid on the regularly scheduled dividend payment dates for the Shares.

8. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDS: EFFECT OF THE OFFER

If the Company purchased 2.5% or 263,642.319 Shares at the NAV Per Share price of \$5.88, as of July 31, 2020, the Company's total cost, not including fees and expenses incurred in connection with the offer, would be approximately \$1,550,216.837, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through the Expiration Date.

The Company will use the proceeds received from the sale of shares of its common stock under the Company's distribution reinvestment plan to pay for Shares tendered. At the sole discretion of the Board, the Company may also use cash on hand, cash available from borrowings and cash from liquidation of investments as of the end of the applicable period to repurchase shares. There are no financing conditions to the Offer.

Lack of Market for Shares. The actual number of Shares outstanding subsequent to completion of the Offer will depend on the number of Shares tendered and purchased in the Offer. Any Shares not tendered pursuant to the Offer will remain issued and outstanding until repurchased or redeemed by the Company. While the Company intends to conduct quarterly tender offers, it is not required to do so and may suspend or terminate the share repurchase program at any time.

The Company intends to seek to complete a liquidity event for its stockholders within five years following the completion of the offering stage. However, the offering period may extend for an indefinite period. Additionally, there can be no assurance that a suitable transaction will be available or that market conditions for a liquidity event will be favorable during that timeframe. As such, there can be no assurance that the Company will complete a liquidity event on acceptable terms or at all.

The Shares the Company acquires pursuant to its Offer will be canceled and returned to the status of authorized but unissued shares and will be available for the Company to issue without further action by the Shareholders for purposes including, without limitation, the raising of additional capital for use in the Company's business.

Tax Consequences of Purchase to Shareholders. The Company's purchase of tendered Shares pursuant to its Offer will have tax consequences for tendering Shareholders and may have tax consequences for non-tendering Shareholders. See Section 6 "Certain Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences" of the Offer to Purchase.

9. PURPOSE OF THE OFFER

Because the Company is a closed-end investment company that is not listed on a national securities exchange, Shareholders have a very limited, if any, ability to sell Shares at face value. Other than in the event of the liquidation of the Company, the Company has no legal obligation to redeem Shares at their face value. The Company has chosen to conduct the Offer to provide a liquidity opportunity to Shareholders.



Following NexPoint Advisors' recommendation regarding the tender offer, as discussed above, the Board considered the information provided to the Board and NexPoint Advisors' analysis and approved the Offer on June 18-19, 2020.

Please bear in mind that neither the Company, nor the Company's Board, nor the Investment Adviser has made any recommendations as to whether you should tender your Shares. Shareholders are urged to consult their own investment and tax advisors and make their own decisions whether to tender any Shares and, if so, how many Shares to tender.

10. INFORMATION CONCERNING THE COMPANY

The Company is registered under the Securities Act as a closed-end management investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development company under the 1940 Act, whose principal executive offices are located at 300 Crescent Court, Suite 700, Dallas, TX 75201, telephone: (844) 485-9167.

Available Information about the Company. The Company is subject to certain informational requirements of the 1940 Act, and in accordance therewith files annual, quarterly and periodic reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") relating to its business, financial condition and other matters. The Company is required to disclose in such proxy statements certain information, as of particular dates, concerning the Company's directors and executive officers, their remuneration, the principal holders of the Company's securities and any material interest of such persons in transactions with the Company. The Company has also filed an Issuer Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO with the SEC. Copies may be obtained, by mail, upon payment of the SEC's customary charges, by writing to its principal office at 100 F. Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Such reports and other information are also available on the SEC's web site (www.sec.gov).

Agreements Involving the Company. NexPoint Advisors acts as the investment adviser for the Company pursuant to an investment management agreement.

The Company also is a party to certain other service agreements. DST Systems, Inc. serves as the Company's transfer agent, distribution paying agent and registrar, as well as the Company's Tender Agent for its Shares and the Depositary for the Offer. State Street Bank and Trust Company serves as the custodian for the Company.

11. INTEREST OF THE DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS; TRANSACTIONS AND ARRANGEMENTS

The business address of the Directors and executive officers of the Company is c/o NexPoint Advisors, L.P., 300 Crescent Court, Suite 700, Dallas, Texas 75201. As of the date of this Offer to Purchase, the Directors and officers of the Company did not beneficially own any Shares, except that James Dondero (President and Principal Executive Officer) owned, through one or more entities, 2,549,002.292 Shares or 24.17% of the Company.

Based on the Company's records and upon information provided to the Company by its Directors and executive officers, neither the Company, nor, to the best of the Company's knowledge, any of the Directors or executive officers of the Company, have effected any transactions in the Company's Shares during the sixty-day period prior to the date hereof.



To the best of the Company's knowledge, none of the Company's executive officers, Directors, or affiliates currently intends to tender Shares held of record or beneficially by such person, if any, for purchase pursuant to the Company's Offer.

Except as set forth in this Offer to Purchase, to the best of the Company's knowledge, the Company knows of no agreement, arrangement or understanding, contingent or otherwise or whether or not legally enforceable, between (a) the Company, any of the Company's executive officers or Directors, any person controlling the Company or any executive officer, trustee or director of any corporation or other person ultimately in control of the Company and (b) any person with respect to any securities issued by the Company (including, but not limited to, any agreement, arrangement or understanding concerning the transfer or the voting of any such securities, joint ventures, loan or option arrangements, puts or calls, guarantees of loans, guarantees against loss, or the giving or withholding of proxies, consents or authorizations).

12. LEGAL MATTERS; REGULATORY APPROVALS

Except as described in this Offer, the Company is not aware of any license or regulatory permit that appears to be material to the Company's businesses that might be adversely affected by the Company's acquisition of Shares as contemplated by the Offer or of any approval or other action by any government or governmental, administrative or regulatory authority or agency, domestic or foreign, that would be required for the Company's acquisition or ownership of Shares as contemplated by the Offer. Should any such approval or other action be required, the Company currently contemplates that it will seek approval or such other action. The Company cannot predict whether it may determine that it is required to delay the acceptance for payment of, or payment for, Shares tendered in response to the Offer, pending the outcome of any such matters. There can be no assurance that any approval or other action, if needed, would be obtained or would be obtained without substantial conditions or that the failure to obtain any approval or other action might not result in adverse consequences to our business. The Company's obligation to accept for payment and pay for shares under the Offer is subject to various conditions. See Section 13 of this Offer to Purchase.

13. CONDITIONS FOR THE OFFER

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Offer, it is the announced policy of the Board, which may be changed by the Directors, and a condition to the Offer that the Company cannot accept tenders or effect repurchases, unless otherwise determined by the Company's Board, if: (1) such transactions, if consummated, would (a) impair the Company's eligibility for treatment as a regulated investment company under the Code (which would make the Company subject to federal income tax on all of its net income and gains in addition to the taxation of shareholders who receive distributions from the Company); or (b) result in a failure of the Company to comply with the applicable asset coverage requirements in the event any senior securities are issued and outstanding; (2) there shall be instituted or pending before any governmental entity or court any action, proceeding, application or claim, or any judgment, order or injunction sought, or any other action taken by any person or entity, which (a) restrains, prohibits or materially delays the making or consummation of the tender offer; (b) challenges the acquisition by the Company of Shares pursuant to the tender offer or the Board's fulfillment of its fiduciary obligations in connection with the tender offer; (c) seeks to obtain any material amount of damages in connection with the tender offer; or (d) otherwise directly or indirectly materially adversely affects the tender offer or the Company; or (3) there is any (a) suspension of or limitation on prices for



trading securities generally on the NYSE or other national securities exchange(s); (b) declaration of a banking moratorium by Federal or state authorities or any suspension of payment by banks in the United States or New York State; or (c) limitation affecting the Company or the issuers of its portfolio securities imposed by federal or state authorities on the extension of credit by lending institutions.

In order to facilitate the Offer, if you own Shares through a broker or other Nominee Holder, when your broker or other Nominee Holder tenders your Shares on your behalf, your broker or other Nominee Holder will be required to provide the Depositary additional contact information. If your broker or other Nominee Holder is unable to provide this contact information, the Company, in its sole discretion, may waive this requirement.

The Company reserves the right, at any time during the pendency of its Offer, to terminate, extend or amend its Offer in any respect. In the event any of the foregoing conditions are modified or waived in whole or in part at any time by the Company, the Company will promptly make a public announcement of such waiver and may, depending on the materiality of the modification or waiver, extend its offer period as provided in Section 2 "Extension of Tender Period; Termination; Amendment" of this Offer to Purchase.

The foregoing conditions are for the sole benefit of the Company and may be asserted by the Company regardless of the circumstances (including any action or inaction by the Company) giving rise to any of these conditions, and may be waived by the Company, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, on or before the Expiration Date, in its sole discretion. The Company's failure at any time to exercise any of the foregoing rights shall not be deemed a waiver of any of these rights, and each of these rights shall be deemed an ongoing right that may be asserted at any time and from time to time. Any determination or judgment by the Company concerning the events described above will be final and binding on all parties.

14. FEES AND EXPENSES

The Company has retained DST Systems, Inc. as the Tender Agent. The Tender Agent may contact holders of Shares by mail, telephone, telex, email, telegraph and personal interviews and may request brokers and other Nominee Holders to forward materials relating to the Offer to beneficial owners. The Tender Agent will receive reasonable and customary compensation for its services, will be reimbursed for certain reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and will be indemnified against certain liabilities in connection therewith, including certain liabilities under the federal securities laws.

The Company will not pay any fees or commissions to any broker, any other Nominee Holder, or any other person (other than the Tender Agent) for soliciting tenders of Shares pursuant to its Offer. Brokers and other Nominee Holders will, upon request, be reimbursed by the Company for reasonable and necessary costs and expenses incurred by them in forwarding materials to their customers. No such broker or other Nominee Holder has been authorized to act as the agent of the Company or the Tender Agent for purposes of the Offer.

The Company will also bear any printing and mailing costs, SEC filing fees and legal fees associated with the Offer.

15. MISCELLANEOUS

The Offer is not being made to (nor will tenders be accepted from or on behalf of) holders of Shares in any jurisdiction in which the making of the Offer or the acceptance thereof would not be in compliance



with the laws of such jurisdiction. We are not aware of any jurisdiction where the making of the Offer is not in compliance with applicable law. If we become aware of any jurisdiction where the making of the Offer is not in compliance with any applicable law, we will make a good faith effort to comply with the applicable law.

In accordance with Rule 13e-4 under the Exchange Act, the Company has filed with the SEC a Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO that contains additional information with respect to the Offer. The Schedule TO, including the exhibits and any amendments thereto, may be examined, and copies may be obtained, at the places and in the manner set forth in Section 10 of this Offer to Purchase.

The Company has not authorized any person to make any recommendation on its behalf regarding whether you should tender or refrain from tendering your Shares in the Offer. The Company has not authorized any person to provide any information or make any representation in connection with the Offer, other than those contained in this Offer to Purchase or in the related Letter of Transmittal. You should not rely upon any recommendation, information or representation that is given or made to you as having been authorized by the Company, the Board, the officers of the Company, the Investment Adviser, the Company's transfer agent or the Tender Agent.

NexPoint Capital, Inc.

August 21, 2020

The Letter of Transmittal, certificates for shares (as applicable) and any other required documents should be sent or delivered by each Company Shareholder or the Shareholder's broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or nominee to the Depositary as follows:

NexPoint Advisors c/o DST Systems, Inc. 430 West 7th Street Kansas City, MO 64105

DELIVERY OF THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A VALID DELIVERY TO THE DEPOSITARY.

Any questions, requests for assistance or requests for additional copies of this Offer to Purchase or the Letter of Transmittal may be directed to the Tender Agent at the telephone number or address set forth below. You may also contact your broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or nominee for assistance concerning the offer. To confirm tender of Shares, Shareholders are directed to contact the Depositary.

NexPoint Advisors c/o DST Systems, Inc. 430 West 7th Street Kansas City, MO 64105

Should you have any questions about the Offer, please contact DST Systems, Inc. at 1-844-485-9167, Monday through Friday, 9 a.m. to 6 p.m., New York City time.



Offer by

NexPoint Capital, Inc.

(the "Company")

to Purchase for Cash Up To 2.5% of Its Outstanding Shares

August 21, 2020

To Our Clients:

Enclosed for your consideration is the offer to purchase dated August 21, 2020 (the "Offer to Purchase") in connection with an offer by the Company, a Delaware corporation registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, as a closed-end management investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, to purchase for cash up to 2.5% of its outstanding shares of common stock, \$0.001 par value (the "Shares"), upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Purchase and the Company's related letter of transmittal (the "Letter of Transmittal," which, together with the Offer to Purchase, each as amended or supplemented from time to time, constitutes the Company's "Offer"). The price to be paid for the Company's Shares will be an amount per Share of (i) not less than the net asset value per Share (the "NAV Per Share") of the Company's common stock (as determined in good faith by the board of directors of the Company (the "Board") or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion) next calculated following the Expiration Date (as defined below) and (ii) not more than 2.5% greater than the NAV Per Share as of such date, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through September 21, 2020, or such later date to which the Offer is extended, less any applicable withholding taxes and without interest, and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer, if properly tendered and not withdrawn prior to the Expiration Date (as defined below). The Company's Offer is not conditioned on any minimum number of shares being tendered but is subject to other conditions as outlined in the Offer and in the related Letter of Transmittal.

We are the registered holder of record of Shares held for your account. A tender of such Shares can be made only by us as the registered holder of record and only pursuant to your instructions. The Offer to Purchase is being furnished to you for your information only and cannot be used by you to tender Shares held by us for your account.

We request instructions as to whether you wish us to tender all or any Shares held by us for your account, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer.

Your attention is invited to the following:

- 1. The purchase price to be paid for the Company's Shares in cash will be an amount per Share of (i) not less than the NAV Per Share of the Company's common stock (as determined in good faith by the Board or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion) next calculated following the Expiration Date (the date of repurchase) and (ii) not more than 2.5% greater than the NAV Per Share as of such date, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through the Expiration Date, less any applicable withholding taxes and without interest, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through September 21, 2020, or such later date to which the Offer is extended, less any applicable withholding taxes and without interest, and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer.
- 2. The Company's Offer and withdrawal rights expire at 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on September 21, 2020, unless the Offer is extended (the "Expiration Date").



- 3. The Company's Offer is not conditioned on any minimum number of shares being tendered but is subject to certain other conditions as outlined in this Offer and in the related Letter of Transmittal.
- 4. For purposes of this Offer, the Company is not requiring that you tender at least 25% of your existing Share holdings if you wish to participate in the Offer. If you choose to tender only a portion of your Shares, you must maintain a minimum balance of \$2,500 worth of shares of common stock following the tender of shares for repurchase.
- 5. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Company's Offer, the Company will purchase Shares validly tendered (and not withdrawn) on or prior to the Expiration Date (as defined in the Offer to Purchase). If the amount of repurchase requests exceeds 2.5% of the Company's outstanding shares of common stock, the Company will repurchase shares on a pro-rata basis. As a result, the Company may repurchase less than the full amount of shares that you request to have repurchased.
- 6. Any stock transfer taxes applicable to the sale of Shares to the Company pursuant to the Company's Offer will be paid by the Shareholders, except as otherwise provided in the Offer to Purchase.
- 7. No fees or commissions will be payable to the Company in connection with the Offers. However, brokers and other nominees who tender Shares pursuant to your instructions may charge you a fee for doing so.
- 8. Your instructions to us should be forwarded in ample time before the Expiration Date to permit us to submit a tender on your behalf.

If you wish to have us tender all or any of your Shares, please so instruct us by completing, executing and returning to us the enclosed instruction form. If you authorize the tender of your Shares, all such Shares will be tendered unless otherwise specified on the detachable part hereof. Your instructions to us should be forwarded as promptly as possible in order to permit us to submit a tender on your behalf in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Offer.

The Offer is not being made to, nor will tenders be accepted from or on behalf of, holders of Shares in any jurisdiction in which the making of the Offer or acceptance thereof would not be in compliance with the laws of such jurisdiction.

Neither of the Company, its Board of Directors (the "Board") nor its investment manager are making any recommendation to any holder of Shares as to whether to tender or refrain from tendering Shares in the Offer. Each holder of Shares is urged to read the Offer to Purchase and the Letter of Transmittal and accompanying materials carefully in evaluating the Offer. No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations in connection with the Offer other than the materials enclosed herewith and the statements specifically set forth in such materials, and, if given or made, such information or representations may not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Company or its Board.

Instructions with Respect to Offer by

NexPoint Capital, Inc.

(the "Company") to Purchase for Cash Up To 2.5% of Its Outstanding Shares

The undersigned acknowledge(s) receipt of the enclosed letter and the Offer to Purchase dated August 21, 2020 (the "Offer to Purchase") and related Letter of Transmittal in connection with an offer by the Company, a Delaware corporation registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, as a closed-end management investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, to purchase for cash up to 2.5% of its outstanding common stock, \$0.001 par value per share (the "Shares").

This will instruct you to tender the number of Shares as indicated below (or if no number is indicated below, all the Shares) held by you for the account of the undersigned, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Purchase and related Letter of Transmittal.

Company Name: NexPoint Capital, Inc.	SIGN HERE
CUSIP: 65341M 102	
Number of Shares to be Tendered:	Signature(s)
amount of Shares*	
Dated . 2020	Please type or print name(s)
	Please type or print address
	Area Code and Telephone Number
	Social Security or other Taxpayer Identification Number

* Unless otherwise indicated, it will be assumed that all Shares held by us for your account are to be tendered. Specify number of Shares to be tendered and specify if not all Shares held by us for your account are to be tendered.



PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BROKERAGE FIRM MAINTAINING YOUR ACCOUNT

The method of delivery of this form is at the option and risk of the tendering holder of Shares. If delivery is by mail, registered mail with return receipt requested, properly insured, is recommended. In all cases, sufficient time should be allowed to ensure timely delivery.

Instructions for Withdrawal of Previously Tendered Shares of NexPoint Capital, Inc.

(the "Company")

If you tendered to the Company, a Delaware corporation registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, as a closed-end management investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, in connection with the offer by the Company to purchase for cash up to 2.5% of its outstanding common stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Shares"), upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the offer to purchase dated August 21, 2020 (the "Offer to Purchase") and the Company's related letter of transmittal (the "Letter of Transmittal," which, together with the Offer to Purchase, each as amended or supplemented from time to time, constitutes the Company's "Offer"), and you wish to withdraw all or any of your tendered Shares, please fill out the attached Notice of Withdrawal. If your Shares are registered in the name of your broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee ("Nominee Holder"), contact that Nominee Holder to withdraw your tendered Shares.

- 1. <u>Withdrawal</u>. If you have tendered your Shares pursuant to the Offer, you may withdraw your Shares previously tendered by completing, executing and sending the attached "Notice of Withdrawal" to the address set forth on the first page of the Notice of Withdrawal. If your Shares are registered in the name of your broker or other Nominee Holder, contact that Nominee Holder to withdraw your tendered Shares.
- 2. <u>Delivery of Notice of Withdrawal.</u> **DST Systems, Inc. (the "Tender Agent") must receive the Notice of Withdrawal prior to 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on September 21, 2020** (the "Expiration Date"), unless the Offer is extended. The method of delivery of any documents related to a withdrawal is at the option and risk of the withdrawing holder of Shares. Any documents related to a withdrawal will be deemed delivered only when actually received by the Tender Agent. If delivery is by mail, registered mail with return receipt requested, properly insured, is recommended. In all cases, sufficient time should be allowed to ensure timely delivery. If your Shares are registered in the name of your broker or other Nominee Holder, you may need to allow such Nominee Holder additional time to withdraw your tendered Shares. You should consult your broker or other Nominee Holder to determine if there is an earlier deadline by which you must inform such Nominee Holder of any decision to withdraw your tendered Shares.
- 3. <u>Procedures</u>. The Notice of Withdrawal must specify the name of the Company, name of the person who tendered the Shares to be withdrawn, the number of Shares to be withdrawn and the name of the registered holder of Shares, if different from that of the person who tendered such Shares. If this Notice of Withdrawal is signed by trustees, executors, administrators, guardians, agents, attorneys-in-fact, officers of corporations or others acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, such persons should so indicate when signing, should indicate location of signing and must submit proper evidence satisfactory to the Company of their authority to so act.



.

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

of Shares of NexPoint Capital, Inc.

(the "Company")

Previously Tendered
Pursuant to the Offer to Purchase Dated August 21, 2020

THE WITHDRAWAL DEADLINE IS 4:00 P.M., NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON SEPTEMBER 21, 2020, UNLESS THE OFFER IS EXTENDED

This Notice of Withdrawal is Submitted to:

DST Systems, Inc.

By First Class Mail, By Overnight Courier, By Hand:

NexPoint Advisors, L.P. c/o DST Systems, Inc. 430 West 7th Street Kansas City, MO 64105

If you have any questions regarding this Notice of Withdrawal, please contact DST Systems, Inc., at 1-844-485-9167.

DESCRIPTION OF SHARES WITHDRAWN			
Name of Company: NexPoint Capital, Inc.			
Name(s) and Address(es) of Registered Holder(s)	Shares Withdrawn*		
(Please fill in, if blank)			
	1 □ All		
	2		
* Unless otherwise indicated, it will be assumed that all Shares are	being withdrawn.		

This Notice of Withdrawal is to be completed if you tendered Shares of the Company in connection with the Offer and wish to withdraw Shares tendered.

Signatures are required on the next page.



NOTE: SIGNATURE(S) MUST BE PROVIDED BELOW. PLEASE READ THE INSTRUCTIONS SET FORTH IN THIS NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL CAREFULLY.

Name of Company:	NexPoint Capital, Inc.	
Signature(s) of Owner(s):		
Date:, 2020		
Printed Names:		
Capacity and Location Signed:		
Address:		



3

NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY

To Tender Shares

Of

NexPoint Capital, Inc.

(the "Company")

Pursuant to the Offer to Purchase Dated August 21, 2020

This form, or a form substantially equivalent to this form, must be used to accept the Offer (as defined in the Letter of Transmittal), upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer Documents (as defined below), if the common stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Shares"), of the Company, and/or all other documents required by the Company's Letter of Transmittal, cannot be delivered to the Tender Agent (as defined in the Offer to Purchase, dated August 21, 2020 (the "Offer to Purchase")) on or before 4:00 p.m., New York City time, September 21, 2020, or such later date to which the Offer is extended (the "Expiration Date"). Such form may be delivered by hand or mailed to the Tender Agent, and must be received by the Tender Agent on or before the Expiration Date. See Section 3, Procedures for Tendering Shares, of the Offer to Purchase.

The Tender Agent for the Offer is:

DST Services, Inc.

Toll Free 1-844-485-9167

By First Class Mail, By Overnight Courier, By Hand:

NexPoint Advisors c/o DST Systems, Inc. 430 West 7th Street Kansas City, MO 64105

DELIVERY OF THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A VALID DELIVERY.

This Notice of Guaranteed Delivery is not to be used to guarantee signatures. If a signature on the Company's Letter of Transmittal is required to be guaranteed by an "eligible guarantor institution" under the instructions thereto, such signature guarantee must appear in the applicable space provided in the signature box on the Letter of Transmittal.



Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned hereby tenders to the Company, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in its Offer to Purchase dated August 21,
2020 and the related Letter of Transmittal (which together, with respect to the Company, constitute the "Offer Documents"), receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, Shares, pursuant to the guaranteed delivery procedure set forth in Section 3 of the Offer to Purchase.

NexPoint Capital, Inc.		
Name of Company	Signature	
☐ check here if the shares will be tendered by book-entry transfer	Name(s) of Tendering Institution	
Number of Shares tendered	(Address)	
DRS Transaction Advice Numbers	(Zip Code)	
(if applicable)		
Account Number	(Area Code and Telephone Number)	



GUARANTEE (Not to be used for signature guarantee)

The undersigned, a firm which is a bank, broker, dealer, credit union, savings association or other entity which is a member in good standing of a recognized Medallion Program approved by The Securities Transfer Association, Inc., including the Securities Transfer Agents Medallion Program, or any other "Eligible Guarantor Institution" (as such term is defined in Rule 17Ad-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), hereby (a) represents that the above named person(s) "own(s)" the Shares tendered hereby and (b) guarantees to deliver to the Tender Agent (as defined in the Offer to Purchase) the Shares tendered hereby, together with a properly completed and duly executed Letter of Transmittal or, in the case of a bookentry delivery, an Agent's Message (as defined in the Offer to Purchase), and any other required documents, all within three trading days of the New York Stock Exchange after the date hereof.

The eligible institution that completes this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery must communicate the guarantee to the Tender Agent (as defined in the Offer to Purchase) and must deliver all required documents to the Tender Agent within the time period set forth in the Offer to Purchase. Failure to do so could result in a financial loss to the eligible institution.

	(Name of Firm)	
	(Authorized Signature)	
	(Name)	
	(Address)	
	(Zip Code)	
(Area Code and Telephone Number)		
Dated:, 2020		



MEDIA CONTACT: LUCY BANNON | (972) 419-6272 | MEDIARELATIONS@NEXPOINTADVISORS.COM



NexPoint Capital, Inc. Announces Tender Offer for Common Stock

DALLAS, August 21, 2020 —NexPoint Capital, Inc. (the "Company"), a non-traded publicly registered business development company sponsored and managed by NexPoint Advisors, L.P., today announced that it will commence a voluntary tender offer on or about August 21, 2020 (the "Tender Offer") for up to 2.5% of its outstanding common stock ("Shares").

The purchase price of each Share will be (i) not less than the net asset value ("NAV") per Share of the Company's common stock ("NAV Per Share") (as determined in good faith by the board of directors of the Company or a committee thereof, in its sole discretion) next calculated following the Expiration Date (as defined in the Offer to Purchase) (the date of repurchase) and (ii) not more than 2.5% greater than the NAV Per Share as of such date, plus any unpaid dividends accrued through the expiration date of the Tender Offer.

This announcement is not a recommendation, an offer to purchase or a solicitation of an offer to sell Shares of the Company. The Company has filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") a tender offer statement on Schedule TO and related exhibits, including an offer to purchase, a related letter of transmittal, and other related documents (the "Tender Offer Documents"). The Tender Offer Documents will be sent by mail to holders of the Shares. Shareholders of the Company may obtain additional copies of the Tender Offer Documents for the Company, without charge, by contacting the Tender Agent for the Tender Offer, DST Systems, Inc., at 1-844-485-9167. Shareholders can also obtain the Tender Offer Documents free of charge on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. Shareholders should read these documents and related exhibits, as the documents contain important information about the Company's Tender Offer.

Tender Offer Questions and Additional Information

Any questions regarding the Tender Offer can be directed to the Company's Tender Agent, DST Systems, Inc., at 1-844-485-9167. The Company's NAV Per Share, \$5.88 as of August 19, 2020 (the last Board-approved NAV), as well as other information, including information about management and the healthcare-focused investment strategy, are available at www.nexpointcapital.com. The information on or accessible through www.nexpointcapital.com is not incorporated by reference herein.

About NexPoint Capital, Inc.

NexPoint Capital, Inc. is a non-traded, publicly registered business development company sponsored and managed by NexPoint Advisors, L.P.

About NexPoint Advisors, L.P.

NexPoint Advisors, L.P. ("NexPoint Advisors") is an SEC-registered adviser on the NexPoint alternative investment platform ("NexPoint"). NexPoint Advisors serves as the adviser to a suite of funds and investment vehicles, including a closed-end fund, interval fund, business development company ("BDC"), and various real estate vehicles. For more information visit www.nexpointadvisors.com.

Except for the historical information and discussions contained herein, statements contained in this news release constitute forward-looking statements. These statements may involve a number of risks, uncertainties, and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially, including the performance of financial markets, the investment performance of NexPoint Advisors' sponsored investment products, general economic conditions, future acquisitions, competitive conditions, and government regulations, including changes in tax laws.

Readers should carefully consider such factors. Further, such forward-looking statements speak only on the date at which such statements are made. NexPoint Advisors undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statement.

This material has been distributed for informational purposes only and should not be considered as investment advice or a recommendation of any particular security, strategy, or investment product. Neither the Company, nor the Company's Board of Directors, nor NexPoint Advisors makes any recommendation as to whether to tender or not to tender any Shares in the Tender Offer. No part of this material may be reproduced in any form, or referred to in any other publication, without express written permission.

###

Contact Information for Tender Offer:

Financial Advisors: (855) 498-1580

Shareholders: (844) 485-9167 Media Relations: (972) 419-6272